#### INTRODUCTION

The parties hereto shall be referred to as they were in the Trial Court or by name. The Record on Appeal, consisting of pleadings, papers, excerpts, partial transcripts and the transcript of the hearing on the Motion For New Trial, as prepared by the Clerk of the Circuit Court for the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, is prepared in four (4) volumes and consists of pages 1 through 979. In this Brief, this will be referred to as "R."followed by an arabic numeral indicating a page. The Transcript of Proceedings is contained in a Supplemental Record bound in several volumes and numbered pages 1 through 1308. In this Brief, the Transcript of Proceedings will be referred to as "T." followed by an arabic numeral indicating a page. All emphasis is supplied unless otherwise indicated.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On August 27, 1975, the Defendant was indicted for First Degree Murder in the Circuit Court of the Sixteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Monroe County, Florida. R. 1-4. On or about November 5, 1975, the Defendant filed a Motion For Production Of Favorable Evidence. R. 34-5. The subsequent history of this matter, until the present trial, which is the subject of this appeal, is not generally relevant and will not be included herein except as needed. On or about July 27, 1979, the Clerk of the Circuit Court for the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, in and for Dade County, Florida, was appointed as Deputy Clerk for the Clerk of the Circuit Court for the Sixteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Monroe County, Florida, in the instant cause. R. 253. On or about June 4, 1982, this Court, through acting Chief Justice Overton, appointed the Honorable Phillip W. Knight, a Judge of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, in and for Dade County, Florida, to try this cause. R. 485. On July 2, 1982, the Defendant filed a Motion For Change Of Venue on the grounds that he could not receive a fair trial in Monroe County, Florida. R. 487-521. On July 6, 1982, the Trial Court held a hearing on the Defendant's Motion For Change Of Venue and on the same date granted the Motion and ordered a change of venue to Dade County, Florida. R. 522, 523.

Trial by jury began on March 22, 1983. R. 788-90. Before the <u>voir</u> <u>dire</u> examination began, counsel for the Defendant informed the Trial Court that he had just learned that one of the State's key witnesses, Ms. Deborah Wesley Evans, was recently charged with Second Degree Murder by the same State Attorney's Office that was prosecuting the Defendant in the instant cause. T. 6, 7. The Defense further indicated that this was a discovery violation, that the failure of the State to disclose this information

- 2 -

constituted prosecutorial misconduct and that the Defendant needed the opportunity to depose Ms. Evans concerning these charges, as well as an opportunity to conduct an independent investigation. T. 7-10. The Court denied the Motion To Dismiss finding no prosecutorial misconduct and denied the Defendant's request to delay the matter so as to have time to investigate independently. T. 11-12. The Court did indicate that the Defendant could depose this witness concerning these new charges after the <u>voir dire</u> examination was completed. T. 12. The State objected to any questions being posed to Ms. Evans concerning the pending charges. T. 12. The Court indicated that such questions would be inadmissible for evidence at trial, but would be permissible in a pre-trial discovery deposition. T. 12.

The voir dire examination concluded on March 22, 1983, with the swearing of the Trial Jury. T. 264. On March 23, 1983, prior to opening statements, the Court ruled that the Defense could not question Deborah Wesley Evans concerning the fact that she had current pending charges with the State Attorney's Office for the Sixteenth Judicial Circuit. The Court ruled that the fact that a person had pending charges is not admissible unless it could be shown that the person had made a deal or agreement with the State in connection with that person's testimony. T. 275-78. The Court directed that the Defense refrain from eliciting testimony in this area, under pain of contempt. It was later noted by Defense Counsel that for some reason his proffer concerning his attempted or expected cross-examination of Deborah Evans was not put on the record, even though it had been made before the Court's ruling. T. 617. The Court allowed the Defendant to make the proffer at that time, for the record, noting that the proffer had been made before the Court's ruling and that the questions were not asked on

- 3 -

cross-examination because of the Court's directive. T. 618. The Defense proffered that, although it had no information concerning a specific deal between Ms. Evans and the State, it still felt that the area was proper cross-examination because the Jury should know about the fact of the pending charges against Ms. Evans and should have this information in deciding whether or not she was trying to gain favor with the State by her testimony and, consequently, the charges might affect her testimony. т. 617. The Court further allowed the Defense to supplement this proffer with the arrest form for the new charges and indicated that it would take judicial notice that the Defendant first found out about these charges the night before the trial, so as to obviate the need for calling a newspaper reporter to substantiate that fact. R. 797; T. 833-34.  $\frac{1}{2}$  Additionally, the Defense proffered that it wanted to cross-examine Deborah Evans concerning the fact that a First Degree Murder Indictment was possible on these new charges, even though she was only arrested for Second Degree Murder. T. 1044. This would illustrate further bias. Her testimony on behalf of the State in this case might convince them not to seek a First Degree Murder Indictment.

The last witness to testify for the State was Charlene Duncan. During her testimony, Ms. Duncan misrepresented certain aspects of the agreement she had with the State concerning her testimony. T. 1010. Ms. Duncan neglected to reveal that, although her agreement with the State was contingent upon a successful appeal, her appeal was unsuccessful. R. 835, 837. Additionally, Ms. Duncan did not reveal that her Motion For Post

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{1}{1}$  It is interesting to note that when the defense sought to question another State witness, Donald Batey, concerning his pending charges and whether he was attempting to curry favor with the State Attorney's Office in exchange for his testimony, the State had no objection to these questions. T. 651. This position is completely inconsistent with the position the State took concerning the proffered cross-examination of Deborah Evans.

Conviction Relief was sworn to before the same Assistant State Attorney who was prosecuting the Defendant herein, R. 834-40, nor did she or the State indicate that in that Post Conviction Motion they were asking the Court to do that which it did not have the power to do, that is, to vacate a valid prior conviction without any legal basis or justification. R. 835-37.

On March 28, 1983, the State rested. At that time, the Defense moved for a Judgment Of Acquittal or, in the alternative, a reduction to Second Degree Murder, which was denied. R. 800; T. 1048-49. At this point the Defense rested and renewed its Motion For Judgment Of Acquittal, which was denied. R. 800; T. 1048-49. Thereafter, closing arguments were made, the Jury was instructed and retired to deliberate on its verdict. R. 801; T. 1227. When the Court was informed that the Jury had reached a verdict, the Court had a conversation with the Defendant's Attorney, during which it offered the Defendant an opportunity to plead guilty to First Degree Murder and avoid the imposition of the death penalty if he would do so before the Court received the Jury's verdict. App. 6, 14-15, 17. The Court gave Defense Counsel an opportunity to discuss this with the Defendant and inquired whether the Defendant had anything to announce before the Jury's verdict was received. T. 1228-29. After the Defendant refused the Court's offer, the Court received the Jury's verdict of guilty of First Degree Murder and adjudicated the Defendant guilty. R. 801-02; T. 1230.

On March 29, 1983, the penalty phase of the trial began. The State presented no evidence other than to request that the Court take judicial notice of the trial proceedings and of the Defendant's 1976 conviction for sale and delivery of a controlled substance. R. 803-04; T. 1247, 1251. Thereafter, the Defendant presented sentencing witnesses, arguments and instructions were made and the Jury retired to deliberate on its advisory

- 5 -

sentence. R. 804; T. 1290. The Jury returned in less than an hour with an advisory sentence of life imprisonment. R. 804; T. 1290-91.

That afternoon, the Trial Court dictated its findings and sentence into the Record. The Court found there were three (3) aggravating circumstances First, that the homicide was committed to hinder the lawful proven. exercise of the police powers of the State of Florida and the County of Monroe. R. 921-24; T. 1297-98. Second, that the homicide was especially wicked, evil, atrocious and cruel. R. 922; T. 1298-99. Third, that the homicide was committed in a cold, calculated and premeditated manner without any pretense of moral or legal justification. R. 922; T. 1299-1300. The Court went on to find a statutory mitigating factor of no prior significant criminal history. R. 123; T. 1300. The Court indicated that it had considered the Defendant's good behavior in jail and attempts at preventing injury to quards, although it did not indicate whether it found this to be a non-statutory mitigating factor. R. 923; T. 1301. Finally, the Court indicated that it considered and weighed heavily the Jury's recommendation, however, decided not to follow it and to instead impose a sentence of death. R. 907, 924; T. 1302.

On June 16, 1983, the Court held a hearing on the Defendant's Motion For A New Trial. R. 941-72. Defendant, through counsel, raised the issue of the Court's restriction of his cross-examination of Deborah Evans concerning her pending charges and indicated that the purpose of this intended cross-examination was to show bias on the part of the witness and not to attack the witness' character. R. 959. Additionally, the Defendant, on his own, raised the issue of the State's knowing use of false testimony in connection with the testimony of Charlene Duncan and the fact that she subsequently received more favorable treatment than that which she had

- 6 -

originally bargained for. R. 967, 978. Included therein was the fact that the State Attorney notarized her Motion For Post Conviction Relief and that the treatment Ms. Duncan received was contrary to the law, in that a valid conviction was vacated without showing any error in her first trial. R. 963, 965-66, 972. On June 23, 1983, the Motion For A New Trial was denied. R. 929. Thereafter, on July 20, 1983, a timely Notice Of Appeal was filed. R. 930. This appeal follows.

## POINTS INVOLVED ON APPEAL

I. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN IMPROPERLY PROHIBITING THE DEFENDANT FROM CROSS-EXAMINING DEBORAH WESLEY EVANS CONCERNING HER THEN PENDING CHARGES BEFORE THE SAME STATE ATTORNEY'S OFFICE WHO WAS PROSECUTING THE DEFENDANT, THEREBY DENYING THE DEFENDANT HIS SIXTH AMENDMENT RIGHT TO CONFRONT HIS ACCUSERS?

II. WHETHER THE DEFENDANT WAS DEPRIVED OF DUE PROCESS OF LAW AND A FAIR TRIAL THROUGH THE ACTIONS OF THE STATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE TESTIMONY OF CHARLENE DUNCAN, INCLUDING THE USE OF FALSE, FRAUDULENT OR MISLEADING TESTIMONY; ACTING OUTSIDE OF ITS AUTHORITY; AND FAILING TO INFORM THE DEFENDANT OF EXCULPATORY MATERIAL IN ITS POSSESSION, ALL IN VIOLATION OF THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND ARTICLE I, SECTION 9 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION?

III. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FINDING AN AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE OF DISRUPTING OR HINDERING THE EXERCISE OF ANY GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTION OR THE ENFORCEMENT OF LAWS IN THAT THE EVIDENCE DID NOT PROVE THIS AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE BEYOND AND TO THE EXCLUSION OF EVERY REASONABLE DOUBT?

IV. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FINDING AN AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE OF ESPECIALLY, WICKED, EVIL, ATTROCIOUS AND CRUEL IN THAT THE EVIDENCE DID NOT SUSTAIN THIS AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE BEYOND AND TO THE EXCLUSION OF A REASONABLE DOUBT?

V. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FINDING AN AGGRAVATING CIRCUMTANCE OF COLD, CALCULATED MURDER IN THAT (A) THE EVIDENCE DID NOT SUSTAIN THIS AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE BEYOND AND TO THE EXCLUSION OF EVERY REASONABLE DOUBT, AND (B) THIS AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE WAS IMPROPERLY APPLIED RETROACTIVELY IN VIOLATION OF ARTICLE I, SECTION 10 OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AS WELL AS ARTICLE I, SECTION 10 OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA?

VI. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN OVERRIDING THE JURY RECOMMENDATION OF LIFE AND IMPOSING A SENTENCE OF DEATH IN THAT THERE WAS A REASONABLE BASIS FOR THE JURY'S RECOMMENDATION AND THE FACTORS SUGGESTING THE SENTENCE OF DEATH WERE NOT SO CLEAR AND CONVINCING SUCH THAT NO REASONABLE PERSONS COULD DIFFER AS TO THEIR APPLICABILITY?

VII. WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT UNCONSTITUTIONALLY SENTENCED THE DEFENDANT TO DEATH IN THAT SAID SENTENCE WAS IMPOSED AS A PENALTY FOR THE DEFENDANT'S EXERCISE OF HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS AND REJECTION OF THE COURT'S PLEA OFFER OF LIFE IMPRISONMENT?

#### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

To prove its case the State called some of the various and sundry residents of the seamy side of Key West, Florida. These included Elmer Wesley a/k/a Peaches, a transvestite heroin addict, who the United States Army had determined was one hundred (100%) percent disabled because of psychological disorders. T. 406, 481-82, 484. Arnold Moore a/k/a Peanut a/k/a Katrina, also a transvestite and cousin of Elmer, who drank every day until he passed out and then started drinking again the next day, and who believed that he was now a woman because Arnold had died in a car crash in 1975. T. 326, 332, 374, 388, 397, 402. Deborah Wesley Evans, the sister of Elmer and the cousin of Arnold and the victim, who was dependent on Elmer for financial support and, at the time she testified, had pending charges of Second Degree Murder before the authorities in Monroe County. T. 6, 7, 530, Charlene Duncan, a resident of Broward Correctional Institution, who 573. was serving a life sentence for the instant homicide and had an agreement with the State to testify in exchange for a subsequent reduction in her sentence. T. 951-55, 1010, 1027.

On August 16, 1975, Opal Lee, Charlene Duncan, Donald Batey and Arnold Moore dressed in women's clothes, were together in Key West, Monroe County, Florida. T. 331-32, 654, 961. They met the victim, Titus Walters, who tried to run the girls over with a car and took some shots at them. Mr. Walters subsequently threatened the girls and beat them to the point that Opal Lee's face was swollen and bruised. T. 335, 656, 658, 963-64, 1000-01. Charlene Duncan felt her life was in danger. T. 1002-06. Ms. Duncan called the Defendant in Miami and told him of the beating by Mr. Walters and requested that he come to Key West to pick them up. T. 966-67. The next morning, Sunday, August 17, 1975, the Defendant and Willie Orr, his

- 9 -

brother, arrived at Elmer Wesley's house in Key West. T. 410-412. After picking up Ms. Lee and Ms. Duncan, they all returned to Mr. Wesley's house. T. 414. A short while later, the victim, Arnold Moore and Deborah Wesley Evans unexpectedly arrived at the house. T. 337, 421, 531. After the three (3) entered the house, the Defendant, Opal Lee, Willie Orr and Charlene Duncan came from behind the curtains which separated the living room from the kitchen. T. 342, 423, 535. The Defendant, using his own weapon, disarmed Titus Walters of his firearm. т. 971. The Defendant, after telling Titus Walters to get on his knees, asked him "man, why you punch my woman in the mouth." T. 343-44. Further, the Defendant stated that he "hates to see a man that beats on a woman." T. 539. At this point, Willie Orr, Charlene Duncan, Deborah Evans, Arnold Moore and Elmer Wesley went into the kitchen which was separated from the living room. T. 344, 424.

The Defendant continued to question the victim concerning the incident the night before, where the victim had beaten up the Defendant's friends. The victim attempted to explain and calm the Defendant's rage over the beating incident and offered to permit Ms. Lee to beat him as retribution. The Defendant's anger, however, continued. T. 344, 424, 974. At this point, the witnesses in the kitchen heard one (1) shot. T. 344-45, 424, 538. The Defendant had fired into the floor. T. 974. The Defendant came into the kitchen and asked for some tape and then sent Mr. Moore and Ms. Duncan to get some. T. 345-46, 426, 974-75. At this point, the Defendant and Opal Lee took the victim to a back room of the house. T. 974-75. When Mr. Moore and Ms. Duncan returned with the tape, they remained in the kitchen with the others where they began to smoke marijuana. T. 346-58, 976-77. The occupants of the kitchen, while peering through the curtains, observed the victim in the toilet with his hands bound with tape and Ms. Lee

- 10 -

wiping sweat off his face. T. 348-49, 351, 429, 547, 982-83. The curtains blocked the view of the victim from the kitchen. T. 539.

Thereafter, the Defendant came into the kitchen and requested needles and Drano, which Elmer Wesley went to obtain. T. 351, 428, 549. Mr. Wesley returned with Johnny Williams, another State witness, who brought with him a bag of heroin. T. 352, 431-33, 625. Mr. Williams stayed for a while in the kitchen and joined the others in the use of drugs. During this time, he did not hear anything unusual and left the house after observing a gun in the Defendant's pocket. T. 628-30. Thereafter, the Defendant came into the kitchen carrying a pillow and commented about having to purchase a new one for Mr. Wesley. He further stated that the victim wouldn't die. T. 353, 430, 554, 985. The Defendant left the kitchen and the witnesses heard two (2) shots. T. 353, 434, 555, 986. The Defendant then came back into the kitchen and everyone except him ran outside the house. While outside, the witnesses heard a final shot. T. 356, 438, 558, 987.

Mr. Wesley, Mr. Moore and Ms. Evans then went to a bar where they proceeded to drink heavily. T. 356, 439, 559. The Defendant, Mr. Orr, Ms. Duncan and Ms. Lee, drove back to Miami. T. 727. On the way, they stopped at the Seven Mile Bridge where the shells from the thirty-eight (.38) caliber revolver were discarded, but the gun was not thrown away. T. 988, 1019. Subsequently, Mr. Wesley, Mr. Moore and Ms. Evans took someone from the bar back to the house where the body was subsequently discovered. T. 348, 441. When the police arrived, Mr. Wesley was crying, carrying on, upset and out of control. T. 682, 683, 692. Each of the witnesses told the police that they did not know anything about the homicide. T. 359, 498, 562.

Some days later, Elmer Wesley was guestioned concerning this homicide.

- 11 -

After being advised of his rights, not being mistreated, understanding his rights, and being in a better condition than he was on the day of the incident, Mr. Wesley confessed to this homicide. T. 451, 465-67, 469, 741, 746, 747, 749-50, 813-14. After learning of Mr. Wesley's confession, Deborah Evans gave the police a statement implicating the Defendant. T. 563, 609. Arnold Moore was also present when Mr. Wesley confessed. т. 379-80. Mr. Wesley and Mr. Moore, because of this confession, were charged with First Degree Murder. т. 365, 515, 764. Subsequently, after implicating the Defendant before the Grand Jury, the First Degree Murder charges against Mr. Wesley and Mr. Moore were dropped. T. 381-82, 515.

The police officers who arrived on the scene found the victim in the bathroom with his hands bound behind his back, a washcloth taped in his mouth and two (2) bullet holes in his head. T. 698, 789, 790. There did not appear to be any injection marks or caustic burns on the victim's body. T. 821. The police officers also found a pillow with six (6) holes and a black substance on it which were consistent with gunshots being fired through it. T. 703-04, 887, 889. There were three (3) projectiles found in the body and, although the police looked thoroughly, there were no other projectiles found in the house. T. 767. An autopsy determined that the victim had been shot once in the right rear of the head, a back to front trajectory which did not penetrate the skull and was not a mortal wound. T. 867. The second shot, behind the right ear, penetrated the base of the skull and was a serious though not mortal wound which would render the victim unconscious. T. 868. The third shot, to the middle of the chest, was a penetrating and perforating wound which perforated the heart, lung and chest wall and caused internal hemorrhaging resulting in death. T. 868-69. The medical examiner concluded that since there were no signs of dragging,

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