IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 64,148

BOBBY MARION FRANCIS,

Appellant,

SID J. WHITE AUG 16 1984 CLERK, SUPREME COURT. By Chief Deputy Clerk

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

AN APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JIM SMITH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

RICHARD E. DORAN Assistant Attorney General Department of Legal Affairs 401 N. W. 2nd Avenue (Suite 820) Miami, Florida 33128 (305) 377-5441

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

ARGUMENT

Ι

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT COMMIT REVERSIBLE ERROR IN PROHIBITING THE DEFENDANT FROM CROSS-EXAMINING DEBORAH WESLEY CONCERNING HER THEN PENDING CHARGES BEFORE THE SAME STATE ATTORNEY'S OFFICE THAT WAS PROSECUTING THE DEFENDANT.

Prior to beginning the trial, the State moved in limine to prevent the defense from questioning Deborah Wesley regarding her recent arrest for second degree murder.⁵ It is important to note that the motion was limited to this request by Mr. Garringer:

> Whatever charge against Miss Wesley is in 1983. The fact that she's been arrested and charged for any crime is not admissible. He can't ask her the question: "Are you on charge for murder."

> He can only ask her: convicted of a felony, if so, how many times.

He may inquire of Miss Wesley, I do believe, "Has the State made you any offer, any deal or any promise for your testimony, in exchange for working something out for the case pending against you."

<u>He can ask her this</u>. I know the answer is "No", because I haven't talked to her. I know no other prosecutor has gotten near her. . .

(TR. 10).

⁵The actual written motion, if one existed, is not contained in the record.

The trial judge granted the motion and outlined the scope of his ruling just before the first witness testified:

My ruling on that is. . . the fact that a person has been arrested and is charged and is presently pending trial is not going to be admissible and I don't want any statement made in reference there to <u>unless the--</u> and I can recede from a ruling upon <u>showing that a deal or something</u> <u>has been made with the State</u> <u>Attorney's Office in reference to</u> the giving of their testimony which I'll hear outside the presence of the jury.

(TR. 275).

The defense later conceeded there was no evidence to even suggest any possibility that a deal could be struck on Ms. Wesley's pending case. (TR. 617). History bears witness to the fact that no deal was made. In <u>Evans v. State</u>, __So.2d ___(Fla. 3d DCA 1984)[9 F.L.W. 1381] Ms. Wesley-Evans conviction for the second degree murder of her husband was affirmed.

In his first point on appeal Mr. Francis contends that the court order granting the Motion in Limine violated his Sixth Amendment right to confrontation in that he was denied the opportunity to establish bias on the part of Ms. Wesley. In raising this point in the lower court defense counsel limited his proffer to the following argument:

. . .I felt I should have an opportunity to cross-examine her as to those charges for whether she's doing it to gain any favor from the State, for the jury to have an opportunity to determine whether these charges would have any effect on her testimony and as a general consideration for the jury's truth, bias and veracity, obviously.⁶

(TR. 617).

In this context it is clear that no reversible error exists.

First, the court did not abuse its discretion in suppressing the fact that the witness faced a pending charge of murder. The Florida Evidence Code prohibits the introduction of evidence of an unrelated crime absent a showing that the evidence is relevant to the crime charged. Section 90.404(2). One possible point of relevancy is a showing tht the testimony presented is biased or otherwise tainted by the witness' desire to curry favor with the authorities. Morrell v. State, 297 So.2d 579 (Fla. 1st DCA 1974).

What separates the appellant's perception of the law from the appellee's view is the appellant's failure to recognize the overview of relevancy as an evidentiary concern. To be admissible, evidence must be relevant. To be relevant, evidence must prove or disprove a material fact.

⁶Those portions of the appellant's argument which go beyond this proffer are not properly before this Court. <u>Steinhorst v. State</u>, 412 So.2d 332, 338 (Fla. 1982); <u>German</u> <u>v. State</u>, 379 So.2d 1013 (Fla. 4th DCA 1980).

Mere speculation on the part of counsel does not equate with relevancy. As far back as Shagra v. State, 84 So.2d 42 (Fla. 1955) this court rejected a defense claim regarding limitation of cross-examination where the record failed to establish the relevance of the inquiry. In the case sub judice no proffer was made of the witness' answer or what that answer would have revealed. This omission provides two basis for rejection of this claim. First, the issue is not preserved. Secondly, the failure to proffer negates the assertion that the trial judge abused his discretion in the matter. The theories are intertwined and shall be presented as such. In Hernandez v. State, 360 So.2d 39 (Fla. 3d DCA 1978) the defendant appealed the limitation placed on the cross-examination of the alleged victim of an aggravated Specifically forbidden was any question concerning assault. the victim's pro-Castro politics and the defendant's anti-Castro stand. The defense contended this would show a possible bias or motive for fabrication of testimony. This contention was rejected by the appellate court:

> Bias on the part of a prosecution witness is a valid point of inquiry in cross-examination, but the prospect of bias does not open the door to every question that might possibly develop the subject. In the early case of Wallace v. State, 41 Fla. Fla. 547, 26 So. 713, 722 (1899), the Supreme Court of Florida laid down the rule that inquiry into collateral matters should not be permitted, unless there is reason to believe it may

tend to promote the ends of justice and it seems essential to the true estimation of the witness's testimony by the jury. Cf. United States v. Fowler, 151 U.S. App.D.C. 79, 81-82, 465 F.2d 664, 666-667 (1972), and cases cited therein. • .

<u>Id.</u> at 41.

Unlike the cases cited in appellant's brief, the instant case involved mere speculation -- a mere prospect of bias-which the learned trial judge had to weigh against the tendency of the evidence to mislead the jury or confuse the real issue in the case. Section 90.403. The so-called proffer found on page 617 of the transcripts indicates that defense counsel had investigated the possibility of a deal between the State and Ms. Wesley but had found no proof of such a transaction. Counsel did not proffer what answer he believed Ms. Wesley would give or how her answer would be relevant to prove a material fact other than her bad character or propensity towards violence. This omission waived further review on the issue. Hernandez, supra. In an analogous situation the Third District Court of Appeal distinguished those cases where relevancy is apparent from the question or the proferred answer from those cases where the line of questions indicates "a fishing expedition during 337 trial" by counsel. A.McD. v. State, 422 So.2d 928, 931 (Fla. 3d DCA 1982). <u>Compare</u>, <u>Lee v. State</u>, 422 So.2d 928, 931 (Fla. 3d DCA 1982).

The instant case is a classic example of why a proffer of the excluded testimony is required prior to appellate review. There is nothing in this record to disclose the abuse of discretion by the trial judge. He indicated that his mind was open and his ruling flexible. He was also aware of the prior sworn statement given by Ms. Evans at the first trial in 1976. (R. 941-942). On several occasions defense counsel attempted to impeach Ms. Evans with that statement. (TR. 591-594). It was plain to the trial judge that Ms. Wesley was not changing her story in any significant way from her previous testimony. That fact, when coupled with the nature of the pending crime and the potential for grossly improper impeachment by showing mere bad acts not related to this crime establish that the court's order was within the reality of proper discretion. The speculative claim made below when compared with facts known to the judge was not sufficient to apprise him of the significance the defense placed on this testimony. This was the essence of the court's ruling. (R. 959).

Had the appellant followed the procedure used in <u>Watts</u> <u>v. State</u>, 450 So.2d 265, 267 (Fla. 2d DCA 1984) in making his "proffer" he might have avoided procedural default. His failure to offer more than speculation to the trial court preclude further review of this point. <u>Hughes v. Raines</u>, 641 F.2d 690, 693 (9th Cir. 1981).

To summarize, the unique factual background of this case distinguishes this judge's decision that the evidence of pending crimes should be suppressed from all prior cases. The rule is not inflexible. It is colored by a respect for the <u>sound</u> discretion of the trial judge who knows the background of his case and the potential mischief to be caused by an unsubstantiated and clearly refuted claim of bias. This fact when coupled with the waiver above, supports affirmance.

Assuming arguendo this court finds the limitation of cross-examination was error, the appellee contends the mistake was harmless. Every witness called by the State gave the same testimony about how Walters was killed by Francis. Corroborating this testimony was the physical evidence, including the murder weapon found in the appellant's possession, and the testimony of Donald Batey and Johnny Williams. These two disinterested witnesses provided crucial unimpeached testimony regarding two key episodes leading up to the killing. Batey recalled the problems Charlene Duncan and Opal Lee had with Walter's on the night prior to his death. (TR. 654-659). He also recalled how Francis, Johnny Williams and others arrived to pick up Charlene and Opal the next morning. (TR. 660-661). Johnny Williams told the jury how he drove Francis and Elmer Wesley to Batey's house at 8:50 a.m. on August 17. (TR. 622). He also testified about

visiting the Wesley home later that day only to find Francis and Willie Orr carrying guns and using drugs. (TR. 627-629).

Even if the defense had been able to impeach Ms. Wesley there was ample supporting evidence upon which a jury could have found Francis guilty. Accordingly, this alleged error is harmless. <u>Brantley v. State</u>, 279 So.2d 290, 291-292 (Fla. 1973); <u>Sloan v. State</u>, 427 So.2d 808, 809 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983); <u>Brown v. State</u>, 426 So.2d 76 (Fla. 1st DCA 1983).

THE DEFENDANT WAS NOT DEPRIVED OF DUE PROCESS OF LAW OR A FAIR TRIAL THROUGH ANY ACTION OF THE STATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE TESTIMONY OF CHARLENE DUNCAN INCLUDING ANY ALLEGED USE OF FALSE, FRAUDULENT OR MISLEADING TESTIMONY; ANY ALLEGEDLY UNAUTHORIZED ACTIONS; OR ANY ALLEGED FAILURE TO INFORM THE DEFENDANT OF ANY EXCULPATORY MATERIAL IN ITS POSSESSION IN VIO-LATION OF THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSE OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND ARTICLE I, SECTION 9 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

In his Motion for New Trial the Appellant raised the issue now presented on appeal. (R. 941-972). Specifically contested was the testimony of Charlene Duncan regarding her case status and the possibility of the State's agreement in a plea bargain if she won her appeal. In the new trial hearing and now on appeal, Appellant contends that the State knowingly used false testimony in connection with Duncan's testimony and later afforded to her more favorable treatment than was explained by her to the jury.

In order to gain a new trial under the type of due process argument now raised the Defendant must show the nondisclosed evidence was material in order to prevail. <u>Lister</u> <u>v. McCleoud</u>, 240 F.2d 16 (10th Cir. 1957); <u>Alcorte v. Texas</u>, 355 U.S. 28, 78 S.Ct. 103, 2 L.Ed.2d 9 (1957).⁷ In <u>Alcorte</u>

⁷The annotation to Alcorte appears at 2 L.Ed.2d 1575.

II

the non-disclosed evidence went straight to the heart of the heat-of-passion defense. That contrasts to this cas where the material facts were the preferred treatment, the precise details and the notion that the State would go the extra mile for her. The testimony of Miss Duncan revealed to the jury that in exchange for her testimony she would get ". . . a new trial to plea guilty to third degree. I would get ten years or either a pardon. The non-disclosed evidence of the details of how Charlene Duncan was rewarded for her assistance is not the stuff of due process violations. To quote Judge Garwood from United States v. Jennings, 724 F.2d 436, 445 (5th Cir. 1984): "Even if Jennings had not known of the conviction, it is apparent that he got all the mileage out of it that he could have if informed of it earlier." The relevant factors were made known to the jury. The State's mechanisms for providing that aid were not relevant to the bias theory presented at trial. Accordingly this claim is meritless.

Beyond the lack of materiality is the clear lack of prejudice. Unlike the many cases cited by the appellant: <u>Alcorte, supra</u>. (one witness case); <u>Wolfe v. State</u>, 190 So.2d 394 (Fla. 1st DCA 1966)(principle witness was accomplice); <u>Lee v. State</u>, 324 So.2d 694 (Fla. 1st DCA 1976)(two principle witneses both co-defendants) this case involves independent physical evidence and independent unimpeached

testimony from three eyewitnesses to the killing and testimony from two unimpeached witnesses corroborating key segments of the eyewitness testimony. see Argument I, above. No prejudice or taint infects the verdict in this cause. It should not be reversed upon a questionable allegation of discovery violation or use of false testimony.⁸ As Appellant's own case, <u>Commonwealth v. Hallowell</u>, 383 A.2d 909, 911 (Pa. 1978) points out:

> The good faith, or lack thereof, by the prosecutor is immaterial because the concern is not punishment of society for misdeeds of the prosecutor, but avoidance of an unfair trial to the accused.

The lack of prejudice in this case is tied not only to the overwhelming evidence against Francis. Mere impeaching evidence is rarely so vital that its non-disclosure merits a new trial. The settled rule in both Florida and federal case law is that a motion for new trial will not be granted where the newly discovered evidence does not go to the merits but merely impeaches a witness and is not such as would produce a different verdict. <u>Harvey v. State</u>, 87 So.2d 582 (Fla. 1956); <u>Hudson v. State</u>, 353 So.2d 633 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977); Roth v. State, 368 So.2d 1310, 1312-1313 (Fla.

⁸The allegations of bad faith, improper conduct and abuse of discretion which fill the Brief of Appellant are not germane to resolution of this issue and shall not be addressed in this Brief. If Appellant is not aware of <u>State</u> <u>v. Murray</u>, 443 So.2d 955 (Fla. 1984) he should review it prior to making an argument that bad acts alone require a new trial.

3d DCA 1979), <u>cert. den.</u>, 379 So.2d 208 (granting a state cross-appeal of a new trial order on this issue); <u>Diamond v.</u> <u>State</u>, 233 So.2d 418 (Fla. 4th DCA 1970); and <u>United States</u> v. Antone, 603 F.2d 566 (5th Cir. 1979).

The <u>Antone</u> decision is especially pertinent in that it incorporates the many federal decisions cited by appellant in its review of non-disclosure of an impeaching fact regarding a witness' deal with prosecutor's. In viewing the specific non-disclose in light of the admitted impeaching evidence the court concluded:

> In any event it was quite apparent to the jury that Haskew was motivated primarily by self-interest. The revelation that the attorney's fees [of Haskew's lawyer] were being paid by the State would not have been especially significant as it would only have further revealed Haskew's self-interest motivation, already amply shown.

> > <u>Id.</u> at 570.

The same rationale amply supports the decision of the trial judge below.

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT COMMIT REVERSIBLE ERROR IN FINDING AN AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE OF DIS-RUPTING OR HINDERING THE EXERCISE OF A GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTION OR THE ENFORCEMENT OF LAWS IN THAT THIS AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE WAS PROVED BEYOND AND TO THE EXCLUSION OF ANY REASONABLE DOUBT.

The appellee takes strong exception to appellant's suggestion that he was not aware of Titus Walter's status as a confidential informant for the Narcotics and Vice Units of Monroe County and Key West. (Brief of Appellant, p. 37). The uncontested testimony presented at trial established Titus Walters as a confidential drug informant used by Officers Larry Dollar and Charles Major. (TR. 916-919, 940-941). Detective Major testified that Walter's was used to set up Bobby Francis for arrest on August 1, 1975. (TR. 942-943). Larry Dollar told the jury that Walter's was dead within approximately three weeks of his first duty. (TR. 920).

Bobby Francis knew it was Walters who had aided the police in arresting him for narcotics offenses. According to Deborah Wesley, Francis had determined his course of action <u>before</u> he was even arrested! Walters had to die because he was an informant who "set up" Francis. (TR. 566, 366-367). Francis' allegation that he did not, or could not, know that the murder of a key police informant would

III

hinder, that is, obstruct or hold back the investigation of narcotics-related crime in Key West, is a factual consideration which is to be given deference when addressed by this court on appeal. <u>State v. Savage</u>, 156 So.2d 566 (Fla. 1st DCA 1963).

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